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GLOBAL PRESENCE OF
LAFARGEHOLCIM

NET SALES ADJUSTED OPERATING EBITDA LEGEND
IN CHF MILLION IN CHF MILLION
—  Presence of LafargeHolcim
8,226 Asia Pacific 1,530 Asia Pacific 8&3 Employees per region
7,023 Europe 1,329 Europe
2,773 Latin America 885 Latin America
3,900 Middle East Africa 1,196 Middle East Africa
5,584 North America 1,329 North America

L

LafargeHolcim
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Company Brief

afarge Cement Jordan is one of the largest and oldest
industrial companies in Jordan, founded in 1951 as a
public shareholding company.

The company has two plants, one in Fuhais and one in
Rashadeya.

Production Capacity of the company is (4.4) million
tons.

In 1998, Lafarge Group entered the Jordanian market
by acquiring shares in Jordan Cement Factories
Company. The Group currently owns (50.2%).



Lafarge in Jordan

Construction industry leader and preferred solution provider in
Jordan creating value for customers and stakeholders.

Mission

Preferred construction solution provider with customers’
excellence, embedded health & safety culture, never losing
sight of environmental sustainability, focusing on being an
employer of choice and building a dynamic organization
maximizing returns to all stakeholders.
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Values

Customers

e Customer centric
e Fasy to deal with
e Keep promises

¢ Provide solutions

Results

e Timely Decision Making
e Qut of the Box Solutions
e Optimization

e Respecting Deadlines

e Accuracy

e Business Acumen

Integrity

e Transparency

e Confidentiality

e Openness & Honesty
e Fairness

e Compliance

¢ Diligence

Sustainability

e Consistency

e Creativity & Innovation

e Preserve Environment for Future
Generations

People

e Health & Safety behavior

e Engagement

e Empowerment & Delegation
e | ead by Example

¢ Professionalism & Excellence
e Uncompromising

e | oyalty

e Team Work

e Trust

e Considerate

e Confidentiality

e Ownership

¢ Dedication

¢ Proactive Communication

e Courage

e Constructive feedback

e Diversity & Inclusion

¢ People Development

e Objectivity

e Flexibility & Speed

¢ Diligence

e Performance Culture

e Business Partnering

e Openness &Transparency

e Responsibility & Accountability
e Care

¢ Discipline & Commitment

e Positive Attitude

e Persistence & Perseverance
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Letter From the Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of myself and members of the Board
of Directors, | would like to present to you Lafarge
Cement Jordan 65th Annual Report which addresses
the Company’s results in 2016 and explains the main
factors that has led to these results.

2016 was a year filled with challenges due to market
surplus exceeding 11 million tons of cement which of
only 4 million tons were consumed, in addition to market
price fluctuation and a decrease in cement prices in the
second half of the year.

As for the Fuhais Plant, the clinker production is still
suspended since 2013 and the Company decided
to stop grinding and packing activities in July 2016
to reduce variable costs especially that the company
continues to bear fixed costs and environmental legal
cases.

To meet this challenge, the company reached out
Municipality of Fuhais and Ministry of Municipalities to
propose a project to rezone the land of Fuhais plant in
order to create an economically vibrant project that aims
to transform the plant into a green investment zone.
Nevertheless we are still waiting for the approval from
the municipality to proceed with the execution of the
project.

Despite the difficult circumstances and the challenges
at all levels, the Company continued to work through
reducing fixed costs and launching Commercial
Transformation Program. We were able to achieve good
results in health and safety with no work related injuries
and continued our commitment to play an active role in
sustainable development through signing an agreement
to install a PVC station in Rashadeya plant. Moreover we
fulfilled our social responsibility role through conducting
capacity building efforts to the local communities based
on their priorities and needs.

To conclude, | am expressing, on behalf of the Board
of Directors and myself, our full confidence that the
Company’s management will be able to find solutions
to face the challenges and to ensure the Company’s
competitiveness in the coming years.
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I also would like to express my appreciation and gratitude
to our valuable shareholders and loyal customers and
convey my full acknowledgement to our employees for
their utmost keenness in exerting their best efforts.
Horia Adrian

To conclude, | am expressing, on behalf of the Board
of Directors and myself, our full confidence and
ability to continue managing this company and find a
convenient solution to face any challenges to guarantee
its competitiveness in the next coming years through
implementing a number of programs and strategic
plans.

I also would like to express my appreciation and gratitude
to our valuable shareholders and loyal customers
and convey my full acknowledgement to all company
employees for their utmost keenness in exerting their
best efforts for the sake of the business.

Horia Adrian

Horia Adrian
Horia Adrian



Letter from Country Chief
Executive Officer

Respected Shareholders of
Lafarge Cement Jordan,

Lafarge Cement Jordan annual results showed a net
loss of (1.712) MJD compared to a 9.763 MJD net
profit in 2015 which were mainly driven by deferred tax
assets recognition for 8.9 MJD in comparison to only
1.4 MJD in 2016

One of the main contributions to the loss was the
decrease in sales volumes by 12.8% due to a decline in
market consumption as the industry slowed down and
lower government expenditure on mega infrastructure
projects. This was coupled with market price fluctuations
and a decrease in cement prices due to competitive
pressures as of mid year. The company is still facing
a major challenge with the continuous increase in
environmental legal cases in Fuhais reaching 1597 new
casesin 2016. Moreover a 4% increase in administrative
cost driven by the annual salary increase was among
the negative factors that influenced our financial results
despite of the achieved savings in variable costs.

The company is still operating lower than its production
capacity as a result of the surplus in the local market
and lack of export opportunities, which led us to stop
the rest of the operations at Fuhais Plant to reduce our
variable costs. It was obvious that a radical solution was
to be found and we have therefore submitted a request
to the Fuhais Municipality to rezone the land fully owned
by the company and in coordination with Ministry
of Municipalities to create the potential for an urban,
sustainable project which will serve the local community
and create economic benefits for both the company
and the country following the directives of His Majesty
King Abdullah Il towards Green Jordan 2020 and his
endeavors to promote investment climate in Jordan.

In order to obtain the rezoning approval, the company
held a series of meetings with representatives from
Fuhais Municipality and the local community resulting
in the signature of a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) on 25/08/2016 which the municipality
subsequently requested amendments. The company
had also prepared preliminary environmental and
traffic studies as agreed to obtain the approval of the
Municipality by the beginning of 2017.

We have been able to fulfill many of our priorities
through the execution of various programs and
initiatives detailed as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Health & Safety Our Overarching Value:
The company’s ongoing progress in Health and
Safety performance manifests in recording 1147 days
without injuries. We have developed a strategic plan

with several priorities under the supervision of the
management and with the support of teams in all of
our sites. Additionally, the company focused on Health
and safety programs designed for both employees
and contractors. On our social responsibility in health
and safety, we have launched a training program to
transfer our international standards to workers the
industry as well as spreading awareness to school
students.

2. Cost Reduction:

With an aim to reduce variable costs, we had
suspended grinding and packing activities in Fuhais.
We also started to import bulk petcock through Agaba
Port, in addition to efforts to control and optimize
fixed costs and administrative expenses. Moreover
there was a great focus on improving the efficiency of
our industrial operations within our various sites and
adding new capacities by introducing two ready mix
plants to serve central and south of Jordan.
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3. Commercial Transformation:

We have launched a plan for commercial transformation
by setting up a new marketing department to define
and execute our marketing strategy . We were able
to preserve the loyalty of many of our customers by
offering new solutions; white cement, innovative ready
mix solutions with high service standards. We have
promoted these unigue solutions with engineering
councils and contractors on various occasions.

4. Human Resource Development:

Believing that human capital is key to our success
we had launched various training plans in H&S and
other specialized areas reaching up to 1600 training
days within the year. We exerted a dedicated effort
to reinforce a positive, motivating work environment
to drive better results in a transparent and open
manner. This was reinforced by monthly town
hall meetings were we used to share updates with
employees in all sites on company’s development,
answer their queries and reach out for their new
ideas and suggestions. Another building block
was the focus on laying a stronger foundation for a
positive and clear relation between the company and
its employees through launching “HR Policy Project”
through which we revised, updated and introduced
up to 40 policies.

5. Sustainable Development:
Being a leader in sustainable development we
have managed to sign a contract for a solar power
plant in Rashadeya, first of its kind in the industry,
which will reduce environmental impacts and which
endorses the country’s renewable energy strategy.
Moreover, the company inaugurated several projects
that are funded during the last 3 years in Qadiseya
and Basira. We also renewed our partnership with
the Royal Society for the Conservation of Nature to
promote environmental awareness in Dana as well as
launched a partnership with Injaz NGO to promote
health and safety awareness among school students..

Ladies and gentlemen,

We shall endeavor to exert our utmost and sincere efforts
toward improving the company’s results and assuring
it's future sustainability relying on our values, anchoring
on our health and safety and the development of our
human capital aiming to deliver the highest standards
of performance through our cultural and commercial
transformations along with our ability to strengthen our
industrial operations.

Finally | wish to extend my gratitude and recognition to
our customers for their trust, to our teams in Lafarge
Jordan whom contributed towards achieved results with
dedication and ownership, and to our shareholders for
your continued trust and support in the management in
this critical moment of our transformation journey.
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Future Outlook

Respected Shareholders,
The company will continue to execute various programs
and projects as per the

Health and Safety:

The company aims to focus primarily on Road Safety of
all its employees, contractors, transporter and partners
with no exception. Training programs will continue to be
offered to increase employee awareness; moreover we
shall contribute to increase awareness for the industry,
school students and other organizations within the
country. Consequence Management will be activated
to achieve desired discipline in all site as well as
reinforce positive behaviors. Besides the mentioned,
consequence management will be applied starting
2017.

Commercial Transformation:

We shall continue our journey of developing and offering
products and innovative solutions to serve our customer
needs in the highest service with any required technical
assistance.

Costs optimization:

We will endeavor to resolve the situation of Fuhais plant
following the progress achieved so far as well as reduce
if not eliminate the negative impact environmental
compensation cases, in addition to optimizing other
fixed costs in order to improve our financial results.

Talent Development:

We will foster our cultural transformation through
reinforcing positive work environment which encourages
innovation and excellence and reinforces the technical
abilities of our staff through various training and
development programs as well as filling the pipeline with
missing/required talent.

Sustainable Development:

We shall continue to offer initiatives to support our local
communities relying on our corporate sustainability
ambitions while reinforcing our positive mutual
relations with our partners and our efforts to protect the
environment and use renewable sources in addition to
the launch of a program of career counseling to enhance
youth opportunities in finding suitable job opportunities
within the country.

Country Chief Executive Officer,
Amr Reda

ﬂm%.:
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Members of Board of Directors

L‘

A\
s

Horia Adrian Amr Reda Saoud Nsairat

Sameer Shalan Omar Bdair Samaan Samaan

Horia Adrian

¢ Chairman of the Board of Directors and LafargeHolcim representative as of 27/7/2015.

¢ Holder of Bachelor and Master degrees in Mechanical Engineering from Romania and MBA from South Korea.
¢ Appointed as Area Manager Middle East in 2015.

¢ Joined Holcim in 2000 as Project Manager in Romania then as Commercial Director of Holcim Azerbaijan in 2004.
¢ Held several positions in Russia and Switzerland

e Started his career with Daewoo Mangalia Heavy Industry in South Korea.

Ahmad Said Heshmat Hasan

¢ Deputy Chairman of the Board and LafargeHolcim representative as of 22/7/2008

e Holder of BS in Architectural Engineering , Diploma in Financial Management —Egypt, and Certificate in Business
Management-Switzerland

e Worked at leading International Companies in Egypt and Arab Gulf, joined Orascom in 1998 and held several
positions in it.

¢ Joined Lafarge in 2008, and was appointed as Regional President for Cement Division’s operations in the Middle
East and Pakistan.

Amr Reda

e Member of the Board and LafargeHolcim representative as of 30/7/2015.

¢ Holder of Bachelor degrees in Accounting from Cairo University and in Business Administration from the American
University in Cairo as well as an MBA from the American University in Cairo.

e Started his career in 1990 at the Arab Bank in Egypt, and then became Finance Manager at 3M and Chief
Financial Officer and General Controller at Heineken Egypt.

¢ Joined Lafarge as Chief Financial Officer in Pakistan in 2006 then Regional Business Controller for the Middle
East and Pakistan. In 2012 he was appointed as CEO for Lafarge Pakistan.

¢ In 2015 he was appointed as Country CEO for Lafarge Jordan.

® Has many contributions in international conventions and community service.
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Saeed Shanan

e Member of the Board and Social Security Investment Fund representative until 5/9/2016.

¢ Head of Operations & Administrative Affairs Department/Social Security Investment Fund since 2004.

¢ Holder of Bachelor and Master’s degrees in Finance from Jordan University.

e Started his career in Bank sector outside Jordan until 1993 after that he held several management positions in
Jordan.

e Board Member in Al-Etihad Bank.

Saoud Nsairat

e Member of the Board and Social Security Investment Fund representative as of 5/9/2016.
e Air Force Commander in Royal Jordanian Air Force from 1999 to 2002.

¢ \ice Chairman for the Joints Chief of Staff in Royal Jordanian Army from 2002 to 2004.

e Minister of Transport from 2004 to 2007.

¢ Chairman of the Board in various Jordanian authorities and companies.

¢ Holder of Master’s Degree in Political Science from Mutah University.

¢ Holder of different Air Force certificates.

Sameer Shalan

e Member of the Board and representative of Rama for Investment & Savings Co. as of 1/1/2016.
e Director of Internal Control Department at Social Security Corporation since 2012

¢ Director of Finance and Administration at Rama for Investment & Saving Co.

¢ Held several positions in Finance and Internal Control in local and regional institutions.

¢ Participated in various committees in local institutions.

¢ Representative of the Social Security Corporation in many Board committees.

¢ Holder of Bachelor degree in Accounting from Jordan University.

Omar Bdair

e Member of the Board and representative of the private sector as of 8/2/2006.

e Holder of M.A degree in Civil Engineering- USA.

¢ Worked as Chairman of Arabian Technical Construction Co. and Jordan Cement Company.
e Member of the Board of Directors at a number of Jordanian companies and societies.

Samaan Samaan

¢ Member of the Board and representative of the Arab Concrete Supply Company as of 30/9/2014.

¢ General Manager for Lafarge Concrete Jordan as of 1/9/2014.

e Acting as Commercial Vice President as of 1/3/2016.

e Country Finance, Control and IT VP until 1/9/2014.

¢ Joined Lafarge in 2005 and held several positions in Jordan.

¢ Holder of BA Degree in Accounting - University of Jordan.

e Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from USA and member of Jordanian Association of Certified Accountants
(JACPA).
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Organizational Chart of the Company’s Executive Committee

Country CEO
Amr Reda

GM Readymix Jordan Country Human
& Acting Commercial Resources Vice

Vice President President

Samaan Luma
Samaan Al-Abdallat

Country Chief
Financial Officer

Ala’a Abu
Ameereh

* Mr. Samaan SAMAAN has became in charge of managing the commercial function (Sales &

Marketing) effective 01/03/2016.
** Cement Technical Executive Director — Muntasser AL-MAAYTAH has retired effective 03/04/2016

(reached the age of 60 years old) and then rejoined the company on a one-year contract basis
effective 10/04/2016.

Organization Structure for the Subsidiary Company
(Lafarge Concrete Jordan)

GM Readymix Jordan &
Acting Commercial Vice \

/ / President \ \

Samaan Samaan

Sales & Logistics
Director

Sameer Aloul

Operations Director

Issa Fakhoury

Country Marketing
Director

Salam Abu Saleh

Health, Safety &
Environment Manager

Ghassan Qunash

Country Internal Audit
& Control & RMX
Finance Manager

Issa Rabieh

Quality Manager

Ibrahim
Al Khawaldeh

Human Resources
Manager

Khaled Helal

Maintenance Manager

Ahmad Qattan
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Executive Committee

Amr Reda

Holder of Bachelor degrees in Accounting from Cairo University and in Business Administration from the American University

in Cairo as well as an MBA from the American University in Cairo.

Started his career in 1990 at the Arab Bank in Egypt, and then became Finance Manager at 3M and Chief Financial Officer
and General Controller at Heineken Egypt.

Joined Lafarge as Chief Financial Officer in Pakistan in 2006 then Regional Business Controller for the Middle East and
Pakistan. In 2012 he was appointed as CEO for Lafarge Pakistan.

In 2015 he was appointed as Country CEO for Lafarge Jordan.
e Has many contributions in international conventions and community service.

Samaan Samaan

e General Manager for Lafarge Concrete Jordan as of 1st September 2014.

¢ Acting as Commercial Vice President as of 1/3/2016.

e Holder of BA Degree in Accounting - University of Jordan.

e Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from USA and member of Jordanian Association of Certified Accountants (JACPA).
e Country Finance, Control and IT VP until 1/9/2014.

e Joined Lafarge in 2005 and held several positions in Finance in Jordan.

Luma Al-Abdallat

e Country Human Resources Vice President.

e Holder of Bachelor degree in Industrial Engineering, and Masters in International Human Resources Management.

¢ Held several positions in the field of management consulting and organizational development and human resources consulting
in Jordan.

e Joined Lafarge in 2006 and held several positions in Human Resources Management in Jordan.

Ala’a Abdel-Hamid Abu Ameereh
Country Chief Financial Officer.

Holder of Bachelor degree in Accounting & Economics from Jordan University in 1994

Started his professional career in 1994 and held diversified positions in Finance and Auditing.

Joined Lafarge Group in 2006 and held several positions in Finance in Jordan.
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Lafarge Cement Jordan was able to accomplish
many achievements in various fields despite the
difficult conditions experienced during 2016.

Health & Safety:

® No loss time injury (LTI) was recorded in 2016, while 80
near-miss accidents were reported and fully closed.

e Big efforts were made by employees to report different
incidents, safety observations and unsafe conditions.

e |nternal Audit continued through regular visits to sites in
order to point out weaknesses and strengths.

e A Strategic plan was designed on 2016 priorities and
many achievements have been made, such as:

- Develop an Emergency procedure including evacuation &
rescue and review for medical emergency response plan

- Launch “Health & Safety: My Lifestyle” slogan to enhance
safe behavior culture. Many activities were held and were
highlighted by Football league championship.

- Establish an internal database for risk assessments.

e (1130) training days were accomplished. Training efforts
expanded to Contractors achieving around (80) training

e Great efforts in training accomplishing around (1130)
training days. Training efforts expanded to Contractors
achieving around (80) training days.

e The company celebrated Health & Safety days under the title
of “I Care, | Share, | Act”. Several raising awareness activities
took place in all locations in addition to Housekeeping and
Risk Assessment activities. “My Personal Commitment”
campaign was launched through several meetings and
discussions to enable employees to determine their personal
commitments.

days. Environment:

* The company celebrated Health & ,:Safety days under o The Company signed the first of its kind agreement in the
the title of I Care, | Share, | Act”. Several raising region to install a Solar Photovoltaic Power Plant with total
awareness activities took place in all locations in addition generating capacity of 15.2 MW to provide Rashadeya plant
to Housekeeping a”d”R'Sk Assessment activities.  “My with around (25%) of its Electric need. This agreement will
Personal Commitment” campaign was launched through make a quantum leap in the consumption of alternative
several meetings with employees and customers to enable clean resources of energy and preserving the atmosphere
them to determine their personal commitments. by reducing the use of electricity generated using the fossil

fuels.

e As a commitment towards Lafarge Holcim Sustainability plan
and reducing Carbon dioxide emissions resulted from cement
production process; the company continued using alternative
fuels instead of traditional fuel at Rashadeya plant.

e The Company continued implementing its policy and
commitment towards constant improvement of the
environmental performance through enhancing the
principle of self environmental control, monitoring different
environmental parameters and improving the work
environment.

e The Company continued the implementation of both
external and internal audits recommendations fulfilling (1ISO
14001) requirements.

- I Adenium

Agreement Signature

Key Figures
Safety Results (2002-2016)
60

Y

50 55

40 ( Work Injuries 2002 - 2016 Employess - Contractors )

&
30 33
*
20 2‘1 23
G 3 1 1 3
10 14 < + - O o * > O O O
A' e & ‘ ‘
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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I couPANY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2016

Industrial Performance

e |ndustrial performance at Rashadeya plant improved in 2016
as a result of increasing the use of coal and alternative fuels
which led into production cost decrease comparing to 2015.

e Rashadeya plant continued producing different types
of cement with the highest quality and standards which
enhanced the Company’s competitiveness.

e Clinker production lines at Fuhais plant remain stopped.
Grinding operations continued until May while packing
stopped by end of July. All industrial activities at Fuhais
plant has stopped since August, 2016.

Sales

e According to official statistics, 2016 constructions market
witnessed drop in construction areas licensed and drop in
total executed construction tracts, which led to aggressive
competition among cement producers, defending their
market shares. The Company was able to maintain its
customers’ loyalty and to avoid significant loss of market
share through developing and adapting effective sales
strategies to avoid negative market fluctuations.

¢ Despite the large fluctuation and decline in price of cement
which market witnessed in 2016, the company managed to
avoid the decline in market prices and maintained its prices
stability in the market.

e The company continued providing high quality White
Cement to its customers in the local market. White cement
strengthens the company’s range of products in the market.

Marketing

e |n 2016 the company established its marketing department
that started working on the implementation of the marketing
plan and supporting the brand equity and exposure to the
various sectors of businesses depending on the quality and
reputation of its products.

e The company is striving to increase customers’ loyalty
and strengthen their partnership through creating and
implementing Events and Programs Calendar that aims to
create direct communication channels with current and
potential customers and top management, this included
inviting Company’s key customers to dinner event which
portrayed with a spirit of cooperation and participatory and
presented the company’s future plans stressing on the
importance of its customers satisfaction and meeting the
market needs with the highest quality.

e Concrete laboratory in Fuhais factory continued providing
technical support to all customer segments in addition to
the development of new products that suits the needs of
customers and markets.

N

Meeting with customers

Our brands
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Human Resources

Training & Development

e The Company has implemented the annual training and
development plan, whereby a large number of diverse
training programs - especially in the field of Occupational
Health and Safety were carried out. The attendance to
these programs included a large segment of the company
employees as well as a large number of employees from
contracting companies who work at Lafarge Jordan, as they
are considered our partners in the production process.

¢ Atotal of (1645) training days were achieved including more
than (1066) employees during 2016.

Health and Safety Training Programs:

e |n collaboration with Al-Khalidi Hospital Training Center
and in continuation of 2015 “Basic Life Support (BLS)”
certification was granted for the 14 doctors and nurses
staff in the clinics of Fuhais and Rashadeya plants that is
accredited by the American Heart Association ( AHA).

e Lafarge Jordan continued to train (148) employees from all
company sites on “First Aid, CPR and AED” and trainees
attained “Certified Heart Savers” certificate accredited by
the American Heart Association (AHA).

e “Supervisors Safety Leadership” and “Visible Felt
Leadership” training program continued for the third year
in a raw for (180) employees in supervisory positions. The

Training Programs during 2016:

program focuses on improving the sense of responsibility . __ Training
and leadership skills for employees in supervisory positions.  EAUEL Training Type Days

e |n order to achieve the company vision of “Zero Harm” and
to ensure a safe work environment for all employees, many 1 Health & Safety 1139
training programs specialized in Occupational Health and
Safety were carried out in all company locations to make 2 Health & Safety for Contractors 81

sure that staff members and contractors understand and
apply all the procedures and instructions related to Health
& Safety, such as Work at Height, Energy Isolation, Work in

3 Specialized industrial training programs 112

Information Technology and training

Confined Places, etc... 4 rograms using e-learnin 42
e |In continuous development of the Health and Safety prog g g
Management System applied in the company through 5 Awareness Programs 205

effective application of international standards, Health and
Safety Department employees attended a training course 6 Leadership & Management Skills 66
“OHSAS 18001:2007 LEAD AUDITOR TRAINING COURSE".

Total 1645

Specialized Training Programs:
e A number of employees participated in many specialized

industrial training programs provided by the group in Human Resources Policies )
multiple manufacturing areas: production, operations, ® Human Resources Department launched the “Human

quality & products, fuel and alternative fuel, maintenance, Resources Policies” project to contribute in creating positive

etc.. Also a number of employees participated in non- working environment governed by specific guidelines.

industrial specialized training programs in the areas of ® This project aims at:

procurement, accounting, internal audit, etc... 1. Laying the foundations for the management to rely on in
e In collaboration with Jordan Energy Chapter (EDAMA) and organizing its business

the Association of Energy Engineers (AEE); a number of 2. Facilitate procedures

employees from the Technical Department and Rashadeya 3. Determine the rights and duties of the employees and the

Plant attained certificates of “Certified Energy Manager- company to achieve justice and equality

CEM” and “Certified Energy Auditor-CEA” accredited by the ~® A specialized team was nominated to work on the

American National Standards Institute ANSI. development of more than 40 policies, of which more than
e Several awareness training courses were carried out for 20 were validated under the following categories:

employees in various fields: Environment, Information - Personnel - Training & development

Technology and its Applications, Products, Legal, Leadership - Work environment - Compensation & benefits

and Management Skills, etc... - Talent Acquisition - Compliance
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I couPANY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2016

Sustainable Development:

e The Company continued its contribution to develop the
local communities around its plants especially in Bseira
and Qadesya in order to maintain the positive relationship
with these communities. To enhance the efficiency
of municipalities and civil associations; the Company
inaugurated many projects as a culmination of three years
efforts.

Main projects are:

- Multipurpose hall in Qadesya Municipality

- Emergency room equipment for Qadesya medical centre

- Multipurpose hall in Bseira Municipality

- Second floor level at Bseira sports and cultural centre

- Waste Processor and Tower Crane for Bseira Municipality

- Tower Crane for Qadesya Municipality

In addition to commencing the work in the Sports field for

Qadesya sports club.

e The Company continued providing in kind donations to
municipalities through resources and vehicles especially in
emergencies and snow storms.

e The Company maintained its partnership with local NGOs
through signing two agreements with the Royal Society for
the Conservation of Nature (RSCN):

- Support development project on tourism guidance
methods and environmental education at Dana Nature
Reserve

- Agree to RSCN to use the “Lahza” rest house, owned by
LafargeHolcim, as an observation station.

e |n order to contribute to deliver quality education in local
schools, the Company renewed its partnership with Injaz
to launch an educational program to spread and raise
awareness amongst youth in Jordan on Health & Safety.
First stage of this Awareness campaign was delivered by
our volunteers during the first semester of the year 2016
through conducting one hour session in different schools
using a booklet developed by Lafarge Jordan. The program
was introduced to more than (1850) students all over the
kingdom.

Equipment for Qadesya & Bseira Municipalities

Health & Safety Awareness Program
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GLOBAL PRESENCE OF
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ﬁﬁ ASIA PACIFIC
s

NET SALES
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8,226 Asia Pacific

7,023 Europe

2,773 Latin America
3,900 Middle East Africa
5,584 North America

ADJUSTED OPERATING EBITDA
IN CHF MILLION

1,530 Asia Pacific

1,329 Europe

885 Latin America
1,196 Middle East Africa
1,329 North America

LEGEND

—  Presence of LafargeHolcim
Eﬁ% Employees per region

L4

LafargeHolcim






JORDAN SECURITIES
COMMISSION

REQUIREMENTS RECORDS
FOR 2016




4 JORDAN SECURITIES COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS RECORDS _

Jordan securities commission requirements records for 2016
A. Letter from Chairman: Please refer to page (8)

B. Board of Directors Report:
Six meetings were held by the Boards of Directors during 2016

1. Company’s Main Activities:
a. The company’s main activity is to produce, and sale of cement and to provide innovative building solutions to the local market.
b. Geographical distribution of the company is as follows:

No. Location Headcount
1 Head office- AMMAN 117
2 Fuhais Plant- Fuhais 195
3 Rashadeya Plant- Tafila 266
4 Agaba sales office- Agaba 4
6 Eritrea & Sudan Terminals 0
Total 582

C. The total capital investment for the company and its subsidiaries reached( 388) MJD in 2016.

2. Associate companies & Subsidiaries: Headcount: 306 employees (distributed as per below schedule
over the different plants & locations):

1. Sudan Company CTS- SUDAN
The subsidiary (CTS Company -SUDAN) the company  AbuAlanda plant 43

operation was stopped . Lafarge cement Jordan owned 99% Shgfa badran plant 33
) . o Irbid plant 37
from the capital of this company the amount of the capital is )
57191 JD. DIelll plant 24
' Sweileh plant 40
Jerash plant 16
2. Arab Concrete Supply Company (Lafarge Concrete Maintenance a1
Jordan) Safety ,Healthy & environment dept 4
* Type of subsidiary: limited liability Head Office 23
e Main activity: Ready Mix production &transportation Agaba Plant 14
e Subsidiary capital: 1,915,000 JD Madaba Plant 7
e Ownership percentage: 51% Quality Dept 24
e Address:
King Abdullah Il ST —Al Rawabi —Bayader wadi Al- Seer * In March 2011 Arab Concrete Supply Company (the subsidiary)
P.0.Box 930490 has established Arabian Specialized Transportation Company
Amman-Jordan 100% owned by the Arab Concrete Supply Company (Lafarge
Tel:06-5507250 Concrete Jordan)

-Type of subsidiary: limited liability
- Main activity: Transportation

Fax:06-5507260

PAGE 28 | LAFARGE CEMENT JORDAN | ANNUAL REPORT | 2016



JORDAN SECURITIES COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS RECORDS

3. A. Members of board of directors: Please refer to page (12)
B. Higher/ Top Management Please refer to page ( 15)

4. The Main shareholders:

Shareholder name Nationalit Number of shares Percentage Number of shares Percentage
y 2016 g 2015 g

Lafarge French 30,388,664 50.275% 30,388,664 50.275%

Social Security Jordanian 13,197,226 21.83% 13,197,226 21.83%

Corporation

Mayloud Shoaiby Moroccan 6,232,125 10.31% 6,232,125 10.31%

5. Competitive Position:

A. Local market

Market is characterized by oversupply, as production capacity reached 11 million tons compared to local market demand which
does not exceed 4.2 million tons. Hence, a fierce competition is clear among companies operating in the cement industry. Price
competition is the main driver for competition in the local market. Distance and proximity play a major role on this.

B. Foreign market
Is a limited market due to high production cost, which does not fit with the global markets

6.Main Suppliers & Customers:

1- National Electricity Company 39%

b  Main Customers: Sales % of total company sales
1. Arabia Comzpany for Concrete Industries. 25%
2.Al-Qawasmi company for Transportation & Trade 10.9%

7. Franchise, Collateral & Invention Rights :

- No collateral agreement is provided for Lafarge Jordan Cement Company by the government, in addition to the expiration of
the Merit agreement with the government by the end of year 2008.

- The company has been granted preliminary approval of the Company to register an invention entitled “The use of pigments in
the Portland cement manufacturing process “ and grant number 3049 with effect from 28.08.2016.

8. Government Decisions & International Quality Standards:

a) Government decisions:
The fact that company continues not being able to use coal in Fuhais Plant as a source of energy puts the company in
a disadvantage position.
The increase in electricity & water prices negatively impacting company’s production cost.

b) International Quality Standards:
The company applies the International Quality Standards and has obtained the following certificates:
1. 1SO 9001
2.1S0 14001
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9. A. Organizational Hierarchy: Please refer to page ( 14 )

B. Headcount by Qualifications

MASTER’S DEGREE 11

HIGHER DIPLOMA 1

BACHELORS DEGREE 159
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DIPLOMA 93
TAWJIHI (Secondary education certificate ) 53
BELOW TAWJIHI 155
ILLITERATE 1

APPLIED SECONDARY EDUCATION CERTIFICATE 55
TRAINING CERTIFICATE 54
TOTAL 582

Subsidiary’s Headcount by Qualifications
PHD & Master

Company Headcount Deg Bachelor Deg. Diploma Tawjihi
Plants 283 2 20 20 241
Head Office 23 2 18 2 1
Total 306 4 38 22 242

C. Employee development & training programs: Please refer to page ( 20 )

10. Risks:

1.Continuous increase in energy & raw material price.

2.Relatively small Jordanian market at the presence of five companies producing and selling cement in a market surplus
situation.

3. Impact of economic slowdown on the overall cement market.

4. Relatively overstaffed compared to produced volumes and operations activity.

5. Pressures from government to reduce cement selling prices and setting a minimum and maximum price.

6. Environmental litigations compensation of 6.451 million JD in 2016 for local community in Fuhais & Rashadeya and increasing
trend in litigations where new cases reached a count of 754 and still 1597 currently in count at the different stage.

7.There is no agreement to organize Fuhais plant land which stopped since 23/2/2013.

11. Main activities & achievements: Please refer to page ( 18)

12.Financial impact of non recurring activities:
Non
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13. Evolution of profit , dividends, shareholders equity, securities prices:

Net shareholders

(JD Million)

2007 57.948 39.289 65% 173.308 10.95
2008 60.023 39.289 65% 183.248 6,45
2009 57.180 39.289 65% 188.941 7,1

2010 0.447 - - 147.654 4.75
2011 (19.887) = - 127.329 1.75
2012 (22.390) - - 106.963 1.37
2013 (26.225) = = 76.908 1.34
2014 (1.382) = - 76.966 1.70
2015 2.290 - - 81.587 1.290
2016 (1.744) = - 73.367 1.560

14 Financial position Analysis & Results:

Lafarge Cement Jordan annual results showed a net loss of (1.712) MJD compared to a 9.763 MJD net profit in 2015 which
were mainly driven by deferred tax assets recognition for 8.9 MJD in comparison to only 1.4 MJD in 2016.

One of the main contributions to the loss was the decrease in sales volumes by 12.8% due to a decline in market consumption as
the industry slowed down and lower government expenditure on mega infrastructure projects. This was coupled with market price
fluctuations and a decrease in cement prices due to competitive pressures as of mid year. The company is still facing a major
challenge with the continuous increase in environmental legal cases in Fuhais reaching 1597 new cases in 2016. Moreover
a 4% increase in administrative cost driven by the annual salary increase was among the negative factors that influenced our
financial results despite of the achieved savings in variable costs.

Below is a list of key financial indicators for the company in 2016 compared to 2015:

Financial indicator

1 Return per share 16% -0.028
2 ROI (return on investment) 13% 3.3%
5 Return on shareholders’ equity 12% -0.023
4 Return on capital 16% -0.028
5 Gross operations profit 12.6% 6.7%
6 Net working capital JD -16544654 -7172053 JD
7 Liquidity Ratio 80% 90%
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Government Income: Lafarge Cement Jordan contributed to government treasury and thus to the Jordanian economy by
almost10,730 MJD during 2016 compared to 10,841 MJD in 2015:

The list below is the government returns for the years 2009-2016:

Year Profit MJD VAT MJD Income tax & *other fees MJD Total MJD
2009 0.096 39.819 11.741 51.656
2010 - 22.904 10.927 33.831
2011 - 18.867 0.841 19.708
2012 - 8.441 0.659 9.100
2013 - 8.998 440 9.438
2014 - 13.096 .633 13.729
2015 - 10.305 .536 10.841
2016 - 10,157 573 10.730
TOTAL 0,096 132,587 26,350 159,033

* “Other fees” have been added to income tax column; ie University fees & R&D.

15. Future development, 2016 Plan & the Board Forecasted Financial results
Please refer to page (9)

16. Audit Fees:
Total Audit fees for the external auditors E&Y for the year ended 2016 is 60,500 JD.

The total amount paid to the external auditors E&Y for work done at the subsidiaries was as follows:

Company Audit fee Other Total
Lafarge Concrete Jordan 14,478 - 14,478
Arabian Specialized Transportation Company 3,000 - 3,000
TOTAL 17,478 - 17,478
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17. 1 Securities owned by Board of Directors members:

Description Nationality No. of shares No. of shares
2016 2015
Lafarge Company 30,388,664 30,388,664
Represented by :
A 1- Horia Adrian Chairman Romanian None None
2 - Ahmad Said Heshmat Hasan Vice chairman Egyptian None None
3- Amr Reda Member Egyptian None None
Social Security Corporation 13,197,226 13,197,226
Represented by :
B 1 -Saeed Shanan Member till 5/9/2016 Jordanian None None
2 — Sameer |brahim Shalan Member From 1/1/2016 Jordanian None None
3- Saoud Ahmad Nsairat Member from 5/9/2016 Jordanian None None

Private sector
C Represented by :

) Member Jordanian 56,356 56,356
Omar Bdeir
Lafarge Concrete Jordan : 250 250
Samaan Samaan Member Jordanian None None

No other companies’ shares are controlled by members of the board.

17.2 Securities owned by Board of Directors’ relatives:

Description Nationality No. of shares 2016 No. of shares 2015

Ghada Ahmad Mukhtar / Wife of

Jordani 115 115
Member of the board Omar Bdeir ordanian

- No shares owned by other members of the board relatives.
- No shares owned by relatives of the higher management.
- No other companies’ shares are controlled by members of the board.

17.3 Number of shares owned by Top Management:

Description Nationality No. of shares No. of shares
2016 2015
Amr Reda Country CEO Egyptian None None
Alaa Abu Ameereh Country Chief Financial Officer Jordanian None None
Luma Al-Abdallat Country Human Resource VP Jordanian None None
Samaan Samaan GM RMX Jordan & Acting Commercial VP Jordanian None None

No other companies’ shares are controlled by Executive committee.
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18 A. Board of Directors remuneration & benefits:

Transportation Board Yearly Total
Yearly allowance Remuneration Travel Yearly
salary (JD)2016 2015(JD)  SXpenses benefits
After tax (JD) (JD)

Other

Description

1 ** Horia Adrian Chairman 2,177

5 Ahmad Said Heshmat Vice chairman . . B 2402 - -
Hasan

3  ** Amr Reda Member - - - - - -

4 Omar Bdeir Member - 3,627 4,650 - -
5 * Saeed Shanan M;gﬂ/t;zrléill - = - - - -
6  * Sameer |brahim Shalan Melr;wlt/);(r);rgm - - = - - -
7 * Saoud Ahmad Nsairat Mzgss(r);rgm

8 *** Samaan Samaan Member - - = - - -

*  Transportation Allowance & remuneration package for Social Security Corporation representatives amounting 16,554 JD
have been transferred to Social Security Corporation.

** Remuneration package for Lafarge Company representatives’ amounting 13,950 JDs after tax for 2015 have been transferred
to Lafarge Company.

*** Remuneration package for Arabia Company for Concrete Industries representatives’ amounting 4,650 JDs have been
transferred to Arabia Company for Concrete Industries account.

18 B. Top Management remuneration & benefits:

Yearly *Yearly Tax paid
o Monthly remuneration & Travel P Other
Description locally & ’
salary(JD)  other allowance expenses .o UD) benefits
(D) D) Y
1 Amr Reda Country CEO 13,636 163,477 39,208 61,036 Status Car &
house rent

2 SamaanSamaan  CM RMXJordan & 9,243 53,036 1,750 ; Status Car
Acting Commercial VP

Country H
3 Luma Al-Abdallat SHLLE R 7.413 43154 2141 ; -
Resource VP

4 Alaa Abu Ameereh lCountlry Chl_ef 5317 34,516 5,042 - -
Financial Officer

* Represents travel, tickets, and accommodation & travel expenses for the top management members & does not include travel
perdiems, for which they are not entitled.
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19. Donations Paid & accrued in 2016:

No. Description JD
1 Local community donation 392,570

20. Commitments, Contracts & Projects with Associate companies:

e |afarge Cement Jordan Company’s relations with the Subsidiary (Lafarge Concrete Jordan) during 2016 amounted to
15,101,261 JD, which represents the net purchases of cement.

e The company in 2016 did not make any commitments, contracts & projects with Chairman of the Board or Board of Directors
or General Manager or with any employee in the company or their relatives.

vironmental contribution: Please refer to page ( 18)
tribution in serving the local community Please refer to page ( 21)
ectors confirms that there are no significant issues that may affect company’s continuity over the

onsibility for preparing the financial statements and providing an efficient control system within

Chairman of the Board Vice chairman Member Member
Horia Adrian Ahmad Hishmat Amr Reda Omar Bdeir
W e =
Member Member Member
Samaan Samaan Sameer Shalan Saoud Nsairat

AN S

3. We sign here below to confirm the correctness, accuracy, and completeness of the
information in this report.

Chairman of the Board General Manager VP Finance
Horia Adrian Amr Reda Alaa Abu-Ameereh

W e = g
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4 JORDAN SECURITIES COMMISSION REQUIREMENTS RECORDS _

4- The Company confirms applying the terms of the guidelines of the governance except for the following items:

Rule Reason

At least one third of Board members is of independent members.

Not Applied
The Board constitutes of a permanent committee called the
Nominations & Remuneration Committee. Not Applied
Audit and Nomination & Remuneration Committees are composed
of at least three non-executive board members, of which two Partially
of them are independent members and chaired by one of the applied
independent members.
Subject to Board approval, each of the two committees sets written Partially
procedures defining their scope and obligations. applied
Each of the two committees’ provides the Board with their :
. : : Partially
decisions and recommendations. General Assembly shall receive .
) applied
as well a report in regard to work performed.
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall perform the
following tasks:
1. Ensure the independence of its independent members on an Not Applied
ongoing basis.
2. Preparing a policy in regards to granting remunerations,
benefits, incentives and salaries in the company, reviewed on an )
) Not Applied
annual basis.
3. Specify company’s need in regards to competencies and
selection process to Executive Management levels as well as Not Applied
employees.
4. Preparation of Human Resources and training Policy in the
company and monitoring its implementation. Not Applied
Nominations & Remuneration Committee is authorized to:
1. Request any data or information from company’s employees who
must cooperate to provide this information fully and accurately. Not Applied
2. Seek legal, financial, administrative or technical advice from any Nt frslies
external consultant.
3. quugst the presence of any employee for any necessary Nt froalies
clarifications.
The Board of Directors sends invitations to each shareholder by
e-mail to attend the General assembly meeting before 21 days Partially
of the meeting, appropriate arrangements and procedures to be applied
done, including the place and time.
The date and venue of the General Assembly meeting to be )
: ; . Partially
announced in three local daily newspapers at least twice and on .
. applied
the Company website.
The Board of Directors shall provide shareholders with necessary
Information attached to the General Assembly invitation flier in
regard to shareholders to be members in the Board of Directors. Not Applied
The Audit Committee meets external auditors without the presence )
. : ' Partially
of any of the executive management or its representatives, once a ;
applied
year at least.
Company commits to not involving External Auditors in other Partially
assignments. applied
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Because six members out of seven represent
persons who own more than 10% of Company
shares.

Not formed; not required by law.

Applied within Audit Committee; its composed

of one independent member as six out of seven
members are non independent.

Applied within Audit Committee

Applied within Audit Committee

No Nominations and Remuneration committee.

No Nominations and Remuneration committee.
The company has a policy addressing benéefits,
bonuses, incentives and salaries.Listen

No Nominations and Remuneration committee.
The company has a policy addressing benefits,
bonuses, incentives and salaries.Listen

Done through the Company management.

No Committee

No Committee

No Committee

According to Companies Law; invitations to
shareholders to be send 14 days prior to meeting
date by mail as there is no e-mail listing in the
records of shareholders.

Announced in two newspapers and on TV
according to law.

Nominees are announced at the Board members
election day which is the General Assembly day.

Financials presented by Company Management
during their meeting with the Audit Committee

Any other work besides the scope of audit is
approved according to internal procedures. External
Auditor is currently performing Sales tax services.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Jordan Cement Factories Public Shareholding Company

Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jordan Cement Factories and its subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the year ended 31 December 2016. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

1) Impairment testing on the Group’s property, plant and equipment - Cement Production lines

The Group’s production lines in Fuhais and Al Rashadieh plants are not fully utilized and accordingly, management prepares
annual impairment test for its property, plant and equipment, which amounted to JD 93,588,836 at 31 December 2016.
Management impairment testing of these non-current assets is dependent on assumptions about future utilization of those
assets, discount rates as well as internal assumptions related to future production levels and operating costs.

The process is complex and includes a high level of estimation, which includes price fluctuations, competition and uncertain
political and economic outlooks. The outcome of impairment testing could vary significantly, if different assumptions applied.

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed

Our audit procedures included an assessment of the methodology of the impairment testing and the appropriateness of key
assumptions. We reviewed and challenged management assumptions, including comparing relevant assumptions to industry
and economic forecasts. We obtained and evaluated management’s sensitivity analyses to ascertain the impact of reasonably
possible changes in key assumptions.

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for more details about this matter.
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2) Valuation of the deferred tax assets

IAS 12 requires a deferred tax asset (DTA) to be recognized in respect of all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference will be utilized. The Group’s
DTA amounted to JD 22,237,250 as at 31 December 2016 in which the largest component of that amount relates to the tax
losses carried forward.

The valuation of the DTA recoverability is complex and includes a high level of estimation, which includes price fluctuations,
competition and uncertain political and economic outlooks. The outcome of the valuation could vary significantly, if different
assumptions applied.

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed:

Our audit procedures included an assessment of correspondence with the relevant tax authorities and the evaluation of tax
exposures. In addition, we assessed management’s assumptions to determine the probability that deferred tax assets recognised
will be recovered through taxable income in future years and available tax planning strategies. We analysed and challenged the
assumptions used to determine tax positions and we reviewed, among others, management approved budgets and forecasts, tax
laws. In addition, we assessed the historical accuracy of management’s estimates.

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements for more details about this matter.

Other information included in the Group’s 2016 Annual Report.
Other information consists of the information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The Group’s 2016 Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Board of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exist. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report, unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper books of accounts which are in agreement with the consolidated financial statements.

Amman - Jordan
14 February 2017
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position
As At 31 December 2016

Notes 2016 2015
JD JD
Assets
Non Current Assets —
Property, plant and equipment 4 93,588,836 100,958,926
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 5 188,087 203,116
Goodwill 3 2,495,949 2,495,945
Employees’ housing and car loans 6 2,065,680 2,779,493
Deferred tax assets 18 22,237,250 20,821,595
Restricted bank balances 10 1,651,131 1,651,131
122,226,929 128,910,206
Current Assets -
Inventory and spare parts 7 34,238,410 33,584,269
Accounts receivable 8 12,652,740 11,113,165
Other current assets 9 12,926,066 12,258,866
Cash on hand and at banks 10 5,418,284 9,144,756
65,235,500 66,101,056
Total Assets 187,462,429 195,011,262
Equity and Liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Paid in capital 1&11 60,444,460 60,444,460
Treasury stocks 12 (323) (3,400)
Statutory reserve 11 27,000,000 27,000,000
Voluntary reserve 11 12,399,640 12,399,640
Fair value reserve (49,473) (34,444)
Accumulated losses (26,427,257) (18,219,252)
73,367,047 81,587,004
Non-controlling interests 26 7,746,999 8,147,610
Total Equity 81,114,046 89,734,614
Non-Current Liabilities —
Obligation for employees’ post-retirement health insurance benefits 17 25,474,000 22,209,000
Long-term loans 16 8,250,000 -
Long term accounts payable 13 216,830 421,938
33,940,830 22,630,938
Current Liabilities -
Short term accounts payable 13 40,164,865 47,843,442
Other current liabilities 14 13,945,004 15,085,827
Current portion of term loans 16 1,750,000 -
Bank overdrafts 10&15 15,195,319 18,543,879
Income tax payable 18 1,352,365 1,172,562
72,407,553 82,645,710
Total Liabilities 106,348,383 105,276,648
Total Equity and Liabilities 187,462,429 195,011,262

The attached notes 1 to 31 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016

Sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Operating profit

Interest income
Finance costs
Lawsuits expenses

Interest on obligation for employees post-retirement health
insurance benefit

Employees’ post-retirement health insurance expense

Provision for rehabilitation of quarries and environment
protection

Provision for employees’ vacation

Foreign exchange gains

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other income

(Loss) profit before tax for the year

Income tax benefits

(Loss) profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Basic and diluted earnings per share, from the (loss) profit for the
year attributable to equity holders of the parent

Notes

19

14

17

17

14

18

2016
JD
91,546,594

(74,424,865)

17,121,729

(1,211,452)
(9,610,530)
(176,010)
6,123,737

213,821
(2,023,868)
(6,451,461)

(965,000)
(106,000)
(74,280)

(68,665)
359,359
1,219,284
28,089
(1,744,984)
33,368
(1,711,616)

(4,251,005)
2,539,389
(1,711,616)

(0.070)

The attached notes 1 to 31 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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2015
JD
104,163,521

(80,993,668)

23,169,853

(1,226,196)
(8,540,535)

(263,799)
13,139,323

80,881
(2,279,988)
(8,008,152)

(1,005,000)
(110,000)
(79,920)

(93,979)
355,137
144,034
147,386
2,289,722
7,473,917
9,763,639

6,942,724
2,820,915
9,763,639

0.115
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31 December 2016

Notes 2016 2015
JD JD
(Loss) profit for the year (1,711,616) 9,763,639
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Net loss from financial assets at fair value through other

nanct IS RS (15,029) (3,164)

comprehensive income

Actuarial losses 17 (3,957,000) (2,320,000)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods, after tax Eerabes) P
Total comprehensive income for the year (5,683,645) 7,440,475
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (8,223,034) 4,619,560
Non-controlling interests 2,539,389 2,820,915
(5,683,645) 7,440,475

The attached notes 1 to 31 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES C-OMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended 31 December 2016

Notes 2016 2015
JD JD

Operating Activities
(Loss) profit before income tax (1,744,984) 2,289,722
Non-cash adjustments
Depreciation 4 7,740,953 8,868,695
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,219,284) (144,034)
Other non-cash expenses 8,720,405 9,472,551
Interest income (213,821) (80,881)
Finance costs 2,023,868 2,279,988
Working capital adjustments:
Accounts receivable, other current assets and

employees’ housing and car loans Ulp2zeter) 908,784
Inventory and spare parts (654,141) 166,727
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (10,086,282) (9,521,438)
Postretirement health insurance benefits paid 17 (1,763,000) (1,678,000)
Payments from provision for social projects = (26,458)
Other provisions paid (6,441,620) (5,019,848)
Employees’ vacation accrual paid (56,011) (33,011)
Income tax paid 18 (1,202,484) (1,049,041)
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities (6,479,363) 6,433,756
Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (769,573) (5631,571)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,617,994 144,034
Interest received 213,821 80,881
Restricted bank balances = (1,651,131)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 1,062,242 (1,957,787)
Financing Activities
Cash proceeds from loans 10,000,000 -
Repayments of term loans - (2,000,000)
Finance costs paid (2,023,868) (2,279,988)
Treasury stocks 3,077 1,061
Dividends of subsidiaries for non-controlling interests (2,940,000) (2,450,000)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 5,039,209 (6,728,927)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (377,912) (2,252,958)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year (9,399,123) (7,146,165)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 10 (9,777,035) (9,399,123)

The attached notes 1 to 31 form part of these consolidated financial statements
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JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2016

(1) General

Jordan Cement Factories Company Ltd. (the “Company“)
was established as a public shareholding company in 1951
and was registered in Ministry of Industry and Trade in 1964.
The Company’s paid in capital as of 31 December 2016 is JD
60,444,460 divided into 60,444,460 shares at a par value of
JD 1 each.

The Company’s main objectives are quarrying, producing, and
trading in cement both in Jordan and abroad either directly
or through brokers as deemed appropriate by the Company.
The subsidiaries main objectives are producing and trading in
ready mix cement.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were authorized for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the Board of Directors on 23 January 2017.

(2.1) Basis Of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income that have been
measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Jordanian Dinars, which represents the functional currency
of the Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of Jordan Cement Factories Company (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at 31
December 2016:

Percentage
Holding  County
Arabian Concrete Supply

51%
Company and its subsidiary* ?

Jordan

Arabian Concrete Supply Company (the subsidiary) has
established Arabian Specialized Transportation Company on
10 March 2011 which is fully owned by Arabian Concrete
Supply Company and is operating in Jordan.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the

Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
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e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and The ability to use its power over the
investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a

loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the

Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests

e Derecognises the cumulative
recorded in equity

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

e Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously
recognised in OCI to profit or loss.

translation differences

(2.2) Changes In Accounting Policies

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
used in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 except for
the followings:



JORDAN CEMENT FACTORIES COMPANY
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments to IAS 27 and IFRS 1)

In August 2014, the IASB amended |IAS 27 Separate Financial
Statements which restore the option for entities, in the
separate financial statements, to account for investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures using the equity
method as described in IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures. A consequential amendment was also made to
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards. The amendment to IFRS 1 allows a first-time
adopter accounting for investments in the separate financial
statements using the equity method, to apply the IFRS 1
exemption for past business combinations to the acquisition
of the investment.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements

related to:

e Materiality

e Disaggregation and subtotals

e Notes structure

e Disclosure of accounting policies

¢ Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (OCI)
arising from equity accounted investments

Investment entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28)

The amendments address the issues arising in practice in the

application of the investment entities consolidation exception

and clarify that:

e The exemption from presenting consolidated financial
statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of
an investment entity, when the investment entity measures
all of its subsidiaries at fair value.

e Subsidiary that is not an investment entity itself and provides
support services to the investment entity is consolidated. All
other subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at
fair value.

e Application of the equity method by a non-investment entity
that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an
investment entity: The amendments to IAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures allow the investor,
when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value
measurement applied by the investment entity associate or
joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38
that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortize intangible assets.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements:
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation,
in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for
business combinations accounting. The amendments also
clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the
same joint operation while joint control is retained. In addition,
a scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that
the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint
control, including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial
interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional
interests in the same joint operation.

The implementation of the new amendments did not have impact
on the Group’s financial position or performance and became
effective for annual periods which started from 1 January 2016.

(2.3) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of financial assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also
affect the revenues and expenses and the resultant provisions
as well as fair value changes reported in equity. In particular,
considerable judgment by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are
necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving
varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results
may differ resulting in future changes in such provisions.

Significant estimates are as follows:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives of its property, plant and equipment for calculating
depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering
the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear.
Management reviews the residual value and useful lives
annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted
where the management believes the useful lives differ from
previous estimates.

Obligation for employees’
insurance benefits

The cost of employees’ post-retirement health insurance
benefits, as well as the present value of the post-retirement
health insurance benefits, are determined using actuarial
valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions
about discount rates, future salary increases, and mortality
rates. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

post-retirement health

Rehabilitation of Quarries

The Group recognizes a provision for the cost of rehabilitation of
quarries. In determining the amount of the provision, estimates
are made in relation to the discount rate, the expected costs to
rehabilitate and the expected timing of those costs.
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(2.4) Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Business combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed
and included in administrative expenses.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts
and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation (except for land and quarries) is computed on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets
as follows:

Description Years

Buildings 6-50
Machinery and equipment 5-30
Vehicles 5-15
Tools and devices 5-15
Furniture and fixture 5-11
Computers 2-15
Others 5-20

Cost of quarries is depreciated using the depletion method
whereby the expense charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss is calculated based on the estimated quantity
of the raw materials reserve adjusted for the quantity depleted
which already extracted.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts,
the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, and
the impairment is recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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The wuseful life and depreciation method are reviewed
periodicallytoensurethatthe method and period of depreciation
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items of property, plant and equipment.

Projects in progress

Projects in progress represent plant and properties under
construction and are stated at cost. This includes the cost of
construction and other direct costs.

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income

These financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at
fair value. The change in fair value of those assets is presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
equity, including the change in fair value resulting from the
foreign exchange differences of non-monetary assets. In case
those assets — or part of them — were sold, the resultant gain or
loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within equity and the fair value reserve for the sold
assets is directly transferred to the retained earnings and not
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

These financial assets are no longer subject to impairment
testing and dividends are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at 31 December)
and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of each cash- generating unit (or group
of cash generating unit) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than their carrying amount an impairment loss is recognized.
Impairment losses related to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

Employees’ Housing and Car Loans

Housing and car loans are recognized initially at fair value,
and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Gain and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the loans are derecognized or impaired,
as well as through the amortization process.

Inventory and spare parts
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location

and conditions are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials and spare parts — purchase cost on weighted
average basis.

¢ Finished goods and work in progress — cost of direct materials
and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads.



Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at original invoice amount less
an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate for
doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is
no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when there is no
possibility of recovery.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less which do not include the risk of the
change in fair value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position
date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. In case impairment exists, the Group determines
the recoverable amount to identify the impairment loss.

Impairment amount is determined as follows:

-Assets carried at amortized cost

The loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is
made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original
terms of the invoice.

Fair value measurement
Fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised
cost are disclosed in (Note 29).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e |n the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most

advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

Obligation for Employees Post-Retirement Health
Insurance Benefits

The Group operates a defined post-retirement health benefit
plan for qualifying employees and their families.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the period
in which they are occurred within other comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the

earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

- The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring
costs.

Loans

All loans are initially recognized at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest
bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Interest on loans is
recorded in the year it is earned.

Accounts Payables and Accruals

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future
for services or goods received whether billed by the supplier
or not.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and
able to be reliably measured.

Rehabilitation of Quarries
Provision is made for the Rehabilitation of Quarries, based on
future estimated expenditures discounted to present values.
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Employees’ Termination Benefits and Social Project Grants
The Group recognizes employees’ termination benefits as
a liability and an expense when the Group is demonstrably
committed to provide termination benefits. The Group is
demonstrably committed when a detailed formal plan is in
place and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The
employees’ termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.

A provision for the social project grants was made to assist
employees whose employments were terminated and after
meeting all the special terms and conditions of the program.

Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent current income taxes and
deferred taxes.

Current income tax is calculated based on the tax rates and
laws that are applicable at the statement of financial position
date.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences at the statement of financial position
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and
tax losses and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the enterprise expects, at the statement of
financial position date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized regardless of
when the timing difference is likely to reverse.

Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the
deferred tax assets can be utilized. At each statement of financial
position date, the Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred
tax assets and the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The
Group recognizes a previously unrecognized deferred tax asset
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The Group conversely reduces the carrying amount of a
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit
of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of goods.

Interest revenue is recognized as interest accrues using the
effective interest rate method.

Other revenues are recognized on an accrual basis.
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Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and the Group intends to either settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Foreign Currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rate of exchange ruling at the consolidated statement of
financial position date.

All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Segment Reporting

For the purpose of reporting to management and the decision
makers in the Group, a business segment is a group of assets
and operations engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments.

For the purpose of reporting to management and the decision
makers in the Group, a geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

(3) Goodwill

Goodwill of JD 2,495,945 relates to the acquisition of Al
Aloul Group that took place in 2008. For impairment testing
purposes, goodwill acquired through business combination
has been allocated to the ready mix (concrete) operating and
reportable segment (cash-generating unit).

On 31 December 2016, management performed its goodwill
impairment test. The recoverable amount of the ready mix
(concrete) cash-generating unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on the 2017 financial budget approved by management. Cash
flow projections beyond 2017 are estimated using a 3% to 5%
growth rate, which management believes is reflective of the
average growth rate in the region. The discount rate applied to
cash flow projections is 8%, which represents the weighted-
average cost of capital for the Group, taking into consideration
the risks specific to the ready mix (concrete) segment.

As a result of this analysis, no impairment loss was recorded.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to the following
assumptions:

- Gross margin

- Discount rates

- Growth rate used to estimate cash flows beyond the budget period

With regard to the assessment of value in use, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the
above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the
unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.
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Depreciation expense was distributed as follows:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JD JD
Cost of sales 7,506,374 8,580,116
Administrative expenses 234,579 288,579
7,740,953 8,868,695

Property, plant and equipment include fully depreciated assets of JD 199,936,529 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD
203,077,117).

(5) Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

JD JD

Quoted Investment-
Al Janoub Filters Manufacturing Company 3,482 3,482
Mining Investment Company 34,808 49,837
Unquoted Investment-
Jordanian Investment and South Development Company 114,297 114,297
Chemical and Mining Industries Company 35,000 35,000
Rashadiya Employees’ Association 500 500

188,087 203.116

(6) Employees’ Housing and Car Loans

Housing Loans

The Company granted its classified employees, who have been in service with the Company for not less than five years, interest-
free housing loans at a maximum amount of JD 22,000 per employee. The loans are repayable in monthly installments, deducted
from the employees’ monthly salaries over a period not to exceed 15 years. These loans are guaranteed by a mortgage over the
real estate.

Car Loans

The Company granted its classified employees interest-free car loans ranging from a minimum amount of JD 10,000 to JD
35,000 depending on the employee’s grade. The loans are repayable in monthly installments, deducted from the employees’
monthly salaries over a period not to exceed 8 years. These loans are guaranteed by a mortgage over the financed car.

Housing and car loans are initially recorded at fair value which is calculated by discounting the monthly installments to their

present value using an interest rate of 8.5% and 6.5%, respectively, which approximates the interest rate for similar commercial
loans, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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(7) Inventory and Spare Parts

JD JD
Spare parts 15,661,987 17,999,618
Finished goods 5,542,883 6,425,795
Work in process 11,650,512 9,537,164
Raw materials 3,582,181 5,231,856
Fuel 2,838,757 1,359,706
39,276,320 40,554,139
Provision for slow moving inventories (5,037,910) (6,969,870)
34,238,410 33,584,269

The carrying amount of slow moving spare parts amounted to JD 5,037,910 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 6,969,870).

The movements on provision for slow moving inventories were as follows:

JD JD
At 1 January 6,969,870 7,167,500
Provision provided during the year - 30,000
Written off during the year (1,931,960) (227,630)
At 31 December 5,037,910 6,969,870

The cost of inventory recognized as an expense during the year was JD 15,344,470 (2015: JD 20,792,586).

(8) Accounts Receivable

JD JD
Local sales receivables 14,567,985 13,634,895
Foreign sales receivables 2,002,122 1,920,601
Due from related parties (Note 25) 55,655 53,279
Others 248,712 220,410
16,874,474 15,829,185
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,221,734) (4,716,020)
12,652,740 11,113,165

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables at nominal value of JD 4,221,734 (2015: JD 4,716,020) were impaired and fully
provided for. The movements on allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows:

JD JD
At 1 January 4,716,020 4,386,287
Provided during the year 90,000 329,733
Amounts written off (584,286) =
At 31 December 4,221,734 4,716,020
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As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade receivables is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past due

nor impaired 30 - 60 days 61 — 90 days >91 days Total
JD JD JD JD JD
2016 5,491,701 2,394,089 1,803,744 2,963,206 12,652,740
2015 5,943,402 1,858,883 1,082,985 2,227,895 11,113,165

Unimpaired receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable.

(9) Other Current Assets

JD JD
Checks under collection 9,845,640 9,739,475
Contractors’ receivables and advances 2,015,409 1,429,444
Prepaid expenses 577,857 725,447
Refundable deposits 347,645 352,520
Others 139,515 11,980
12,926,066 12,258,866

(10) Cash on Hand and at Banks

JD JD
Cash on hand and at banks 5,418,284 9,144,756
Less: bank overdrafts (15,195,319) (18,543,879)
(9,777,035) (9,399,123)

Cash at banks includes current and deposit accounts bearing an average interest rate ranging between 3% to 4% as of 31
December 2015 (2016: None). Short-term deposits maturity period between one day and one month, depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group.

Restricted bank balances:

This balance represents amounts restricted by the Arab Bank as of 31 December 2016 as a result of a court decision on legal
lawsuit against Cementia Co. which used to manage the Group’s terminal at Sudan. Cementia Co. has reimbursed the Group with
this amount until the final court verdict is issued.

(11) Equity Attributable To Equity Holders

Paid in capital
The Group’s authorized, subscribed and issued capital comprise of 60,444,460 shares at par value of JD 1 per share.

Statutory reserve

As required by the Jordanian Companies Law, 10% of the profit before tax is to be transferred to statutory reserve. This reserve
is not available for distribution to the shareholders. Moreover, transfers cannot be stopped before the statutory reserve reaches
25% of the Company’s authorized capital. However, based on the approval of the General Assembly, transfers can be continued
until the statutory reserve reaches the authorized capital.

Voluntary reserve
The amount accumulated in this reserve represents the transfers from profit before tax at maximum of 20%. This reserve is
available for distribution to the shareholders.
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(12) Treasury Stocks

This item represents the value of the stocks acquired by Arabian Concrete Supply Company (subsidiary) in the capital of Jordan
Cement Factories which cost JD 3,400 and was purchased in the year 2012. During the first quarter of the year 2016, an amount
of 3,077 JD was sold from these stocks.

(13) Accounts Payable

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Short term Long term Short term Long term
accounts payable accounts payable accounts payable accounts payable
JD JD JD JD
Trade payables 21,266,375 216,830 31,648,263 421,938
Accrued payables 7,070,096 - 7,154,338 -
Due to related parties (Note 25) 11,828,394 = 9,040,841 =
40,164,865 216,830 47,843,442 421,938

(14) Other Current Liabilities

JD JD

Unpaid dividends 5,659,830 5,820,308
Sales tax payable - 791,070
Provision for lawsuits against the Group (Note 24)* 5,057,120 5,047,279
Housing fund and health insurance deposits 135,218 170,085
Rehabilitation of quarries and environment protection** 1,201,403 1,127,123
Provision for other commitments 84,698 25,076
Provision for employees unity fund and end of service indemnity 1,723 1,645
Employees’ vacation accrual 693,133 680,479
Accrued expenses 442 418 286,080
Others 669,461 1,136,682

13,945,004 15,085,827

* Movements on the provision for lawsuits against the Group were as follows:

JD JD
At 1 January 5,047,279 2,047,279
Provided during the year 6,451,461 8,008,152
Amounts paid during the year (6,441,620) (5,008,152)
At 31 December 5,057,120 5,047,279

** Provision is made for the rehabilitation of quarries, based on future estimated expenditures discounted using a discount rate of 5.7%.
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Movements on the provision for rehabilitation of quarries and environment protection were as follows:

—
o
—
O

At 1 January 1,127,123 1,058,899
Provided during the year 74,280 79,920
Amounts paid during the year = (11,696)
At 31 December 1,201,403 1,127,123

(15) Bank Overdrafts

This item represents credit facilities at 31 December 2016. The Group has obtained credit facilities from the Arab Bank with a
ceiling of JD 4,000,000, from Housing Bank for Trade and Finance with a ceiling of JD 8,000,000, from ABC Bank with a ceiling
of JD 2,500,000, from Jordan Kuwaiti Bank with a ceiling of JD 3,000,000, and from Union Bank with a ceiling of JD 2,000,000
and form Societe Generale De Banque — Jordanie with a ceiling of JD 4,000,000 with an annual interest rates ranges between
5.5% to 7.38%.

(16) Term Loans

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Short term loans  Long term loans  Short term loans  Long term loans

JD JD JD

Housing Bank for Trade and Finance* 750,000 5,250,000 - -
Societe Generale De Banque — Jordanie ** 1,000,000 3,000,000 = =
1,750,000 8,250,000 - -

* Housing Bank for Trade and Finance

On 15 August 2016, Jordan Cement Factories Company signed a loan agreement with Housing Bank for Trade and Finance for
an amount of JD 6,000,000. The loan bears an interest rate of 5.5%. This loan is repaid in 8 equal semi annual installments, the
first of which will due on 1 July 2017 and the last one is due on 1 January 2021.

** Societe Generale De Banque- Jordanie

On 13 June 2016, Jordan Cement Factories Company signed a loan agreement with Societe Generale De Banque- Jordanie for
an amount of JD 4,000,000. The loan bears an interest rate of 5.5%. This loan is repaid in 8 equal semi annual installments, the
first of which will due on 30 June 2017 and the last one is due on 30 December 2020.

(17) Obligation For Employees’ Post-Retirement Health Insurance Benefits

The Group operates a defined post-retirement health benefit plan for qualifying employees and their families who meet certain
conditions. Under the plan, employees are entitled to retirement benefits on attainment of a retirement age of 50 years for
females and 60 years for males. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

Retirees (until their deaths) and their families (until the death of the spouse and until the maximum age of coverage for the
children) pay a contribution of:

1. 2.5% of social security salary for retiree with a minimum of JD 6 per month.

2. 20% of the families medical cost with a maximum of JD 200 per medical case
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The following table summarizes the components of the employees’ post-retirement health insurance net expense recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

JD JD
Current service cost 106,000 110,000
Interest cost 965,000 1,005,000
1,071,000 1,115,000

Changes in the present value of the obligation for employees post-retirement health insurance benefits were as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
At 1 January 22,209,000 20,452,000
Expense during the year 1,071,000 1,115,000
Actuarial losses 3,957,000 2,320,000
Amounts paid during the year (1,763,000) (1,678,000)
At 31 December 25,474,000 22,209,000

The principal assumptions used in determining post-retirement health insurance provision for the Company’s plan are shown

below:
Discount Rate 5.08% 4.55%
Long term medical cost inflation rate 3.50% 3.50%
Expected rate of salaries increase 4.90% 6%
Reevaluation of pension rate 2% 2%
Mortality / Disability age 88-90 for female 88-90 for female

Turnover rates

Retirement age:

60-64 for male

1% a year up to 50 years old

60-64 for male

1% a year up to 50 years old

Male 60 60
Female 55 515
Maximum age of coverage for children

Female 27 27
Male 23 23
Annual premium — cement employees JD 413 JD 374
Annual premium — retired employees JD 385 JD 293
Contribution and co-payments for family’s member JD 62 JD 54
Social security salary JD 7,441 JD 7,224
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the present value of the obligation for employees’ post-retirement health
insurance benefits and the current service cost and interest cost on obligation to reasonably possible changes in medical cost.

Effect on current service

Increase/decrease Effect on the present value of cost and _interest cost on the

in medical costs the obligation

obligation

2016 -
+1% 1,783,000 40,000
-1% (1,528,000) (38,000)
2015 -
+1% 1,009,000 51,000
-1% (678,000) (49,000)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the present value of the obligation for employees’ post-retirement health
insurance benefits to reasonably possible changes in the discount rate.

Effect on present value of the obligation

Increase /decrease
in discount rate

JD JD
+0.5% (1,363,000) (735,000)
-0.5% 1,517,000 1,836,000

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses is JD 11,853,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 7,896,000).

(18) Income Tax

A) Income tax payable

The movements on the provision for income tax were as follows:

JD JD
At 1 January 1,172,562 769,059
Current year income tax expense 1,382,287 1,452,544
Income tax paid (1,202,484) (1,049,041)
At 31 December 1,352,365 1,172,562

The income tax presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents the following:

2016
JD JD
Current year income tax
Current year income tax expense 1,382,287 1,452,544
Deferred income tax
Deferred tax assets additions (1,415,655) (8,926,461)
(33,368) (7,473,917)
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The reconciliation between the taxable profit and the accounting profit is as follows:

JD JD

Accounting (loss) income (1,744,984) 2,289,722
Non-deductible expenses 2,999,315 3,093,986
Taxable income 1,254,331 5,383,708
Relates to
Total loss excluding Agaba - Holding Company (9,189,841) (5,743,443)
Taxable income excluding Agaba - Subsidiary 9,286,739 10,150,942
Taxable income for Agaba - Holding Company 952,013 848,688
Taxable income for Agaba - Subsidiary 205,420 127,521
Statutory income tax rate for Holding Company

excluding Agaba 24% 24%
Statutory income tax rate for Subsidiary excluding Agaba 14% 14%
Statutory income tax rate for Holding Company - Agaba 5% 5%
Statutory income tax rate for Subsidiary - Agaba 5% 5%
Income tax benefits (33,368) (7,473,917)

Effective tax rate - -

Income tax provision for the year 2016 and 2015 was calculated in accordance with the Income Tax Law No. (34) of 2014.

The Company reached a final settlement with the Income Tax Department up to the year 2014 after it was chosen as part from
the sample selected by the Income Tax Department for this year.

The Income Tax Department did not review the accounting records for the Company for the years 2016 and 2015.
The subsidiary (Arabian Concrete Supply Company) reached a final settlement with the Income Tax Department up to the year 2014.

The Income Tax Department did not review the accounting records for the subsidiary (Arabian Specialized Transportation
Company) for the period since inception and up to 31 December 2012, noting that this company has reached a final settlement
with the Income Tax Department for the years 2013 and 2014 after it was chosen as part from the sample selected by the Income
Tax Department for these years.

B) Deferred income tax
Deferred tax assets at 31 December relate to the following:

Consolidated statement of Consolidated statement of profit
financial position or loss
2016 2015 2016 2015
JD JD JD JD
Provision for lawsuits against the Group 1,200,000 1,200,000 - 920,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts 518,648 518,832 (184) 216,180
Pfﬁfiﬁ:ﬁéﬁfﬂ!ﬁf?ﬁ of quarries and 288,337 270,510 17,827 122,264
Employees’ vacation accrual 158,571 149,844 8,727 71,855
Provision for slow moving inventories 1,201,444 1,665,114 (463,670) 1,665,114
Other provisions 411 393 18 (2,513)
Deferred income tax on accumulated losses 18,869,839 17,016,902 1,852,937 5,933,561
Total 22,237,250 20,821,595 1,415,655 8,926,461
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(19) Selling and Marketing Expenses

2016 2015
JD JD
Salaries and wages 833,418 867,734
Contribution to social security 93,776 86,996
Freight charges - 24,650
Others 284,258 246,816
1,211,452 1,226,196

(20) Administrative Expenses

2016 2015
JD JD

Salaries, wages and other benefits 3,747,745 3,692,626
Contribution to social security 335,701 327,271
Contribution to employees’ provident fund 212,468 209,131
Contribution to employees unity fund 21,732 21,472
Legal and consulting fees 1,397,238 419,648
Franchise fees - Lafarge (parent) 1,551,389 1,635,654
Travel and transportation 109,814 117,052
Depreciation 234,579 288,579
Advertisements and exhibitions 24,608 11,254
Post and telephone 89,260 54,520
Insurance 196,454 198,666
Stationary, subscriptions and printings 113,924 60,527
Fuel 38,509 48,122
Donations 390,293 70,115
Rent 223,842 185,909
Training 45,460 24,100
Maintenance 31,612 15,184
Computer expenses 104,070 82,648
Hospitality 53,960 56,473
Others 687,872 1,021,584

9,610,530 8,540,535

(21) Earnings Per share

2016 2015
(Loss) profit for the year attributed to equity holders of the parent (JD) (4,251,005) 6,942,724
Weighted average number of shares (share) 60,444,460 60,444,460

Basic and diluted earnings per share, from the (loss) profit for the year

0.070 0.115
attributable to equity holders of the parent (JD) ( )
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(22) Segment Information

The segment performance is measured, for management purposes, through the geographical information showing later in this
note disclosure, and through the following business segments:

- Cement business

- Ready mix (concrete) business

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss for the year as shown below:

Business Information
Revenue, profit, assets and liabilities by business segment are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Ready mix (concrete)

Cement Business Business Eliminations

Revenues -

Sales 46,455,191 45,091,403 - 91,546,594
Inter segment sales 15,101,261 - (15,101,261) -
Total 61,556,452 45,091,403 (15,101,261) 91,546,594
Results -

(Loss) profit before tax (8,237,825) 6,492,841 - (1,744,984)
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,343,782 (1,310,414) - 33,368
(Loss) profit for the year (6,894,043) 5,182,427 - (1,711,616)

Other segment information -
Capital expenditures 699,573 70,000 - 769,573
Depreciation 7,019,298 721,655 - 7,740,953

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Ready mix (concrete)

Cement Business Business Eliminations Total
JD JD JD JD

Revenues -
Sales 57,219,316 46,944,205 - 104,163,521
Inter segment sales 17,594,201 = (17,594,201) =
Total 74,813,517 46,944,205 (17,594,201) 104,163,521
Results -
(Loss) profit before tax (4,894,755) 7,184,477 - 2,289,722
Income tax benefit (expense) 8,901,425 (1,427,508) - 7,473,917
Profit for the year 4,006,670 5,756,969 - 9,763,639
Other segment information -
Capital expenditures 358,438 173,133 - 531,571
Depreciation 7,697,055 1,171,640 - 8,868,695
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Ready mix (concrete)

Cement Business Business Total
JD JD JD

As at 31 December 2016

Assets and Liabilities -

Segment assets 155,121,203 32,341,226 187,462,429
Segment liabilities 92,628,964 13,719,419 106,348,383
As at 31 December 2015

Assets and Liabilities -

Segment assets 163,008,716 32,002,546 195,011,262
Segment liabilities 94,533,083 10,743,565 105,276,648

Geographical Information
Revenue, profit, assets and liabilities by geographical segment are as follows:

Jordan Excluding
Aqaba

JD

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Revenues -

Sales 87,724,594 3,822,000 91,546,594
Results -

(Loss) profit before tax (2,902,694) 1,157,710 (1,744,984)
Income tax benefit (expense) 99,982 (66,614) 33,368
(Loss) profit for the year (2,802,712) 1,091,096 (1,711,616)

Other segment information -
Capital expenditures 769,573 - 769,573
Depreciation 7,728,207 12,746 7,740,953

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Revenues -

Sales 100,177,186 3,986,335 104,163,521
Results -

Profit before tax 1,318,564 971,158 2,289,722
Income tax benefit (expense) 7,675,936 (202,019) 7,473,917
Profit for the year 8,994,500 769,139 9,763,639

Other segment information -

Capital expenditures 531,571 - 531,571
Depreciation 8,839,814 28,881 8,868,695
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As at 31 December 2016
Assets and Liabilities -
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

As at 31 December 2015
Assets and Liabilities -
Segment assets

Segment liabilities

Jordan Excluding

Aqaba Aqgaba Total
JD JD JD
186,218,614 1,243,815 187,462,429
105,584,639 763,744 106,348,383
194,211,714 799,548 195,011,262
104,720,129 556,519 105,276,648

(23) Salaries And Employees Benefits

Salaries, wages and other employees’ benefits

Social security

Contribution to employees’ provident fund
Employees’ post retirement health insurance expense
Meals

Employees’ health Insurance

Employees’ families health Insurance

Employees’ life insurance

Scholarship

Others

2016 2015
JD JD
15,484,450 16,292,820

1,669,316 1,683,129
864,532 848,442
1,071,000 1,115,000
37,533 155,724
452,406 363,489
589,716 684,920
42 957 49,233
59,200 58,800
510919 532,386
20,782,029 21,783,943

(24) Commitments And Contingencies

Bank guarantees and letters of credit:

Letters of guarantee

Bills of collection

Legal claims

JD JD
4,259,851 9,686,134
3,445,578 1,466,039

The Group is defendant in a number of lawsuits representing legal actions and claims related to its ordinary course of business
in a total amount of JD 11,370,923 (2015: JD 8,231,083). The management and their legal advisor believe that the provision
recorded of JD 5,057,120 as of 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 5,047,279) is sufficient to meet the obligation that may arise from

the lawsuits.
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Contractual commitments

JD JD
Purchase of property and equipment 253,630 -
Purchase of raw materials 222,950 1,107,263
Other purchases 14,840,000 14,840,000

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases are detailed as follows:

Year For the year ended on 31 December
2017 2,657,310
2018 1,346,155
2019 880,175
2020 505,470
2021 and after 180,618

(25) Related Party Transactions

Related parties represent associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group,
and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.

Pricing policies and terms of the transactions with related parties are approved by the Group’s management.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with related parties and outstanding
balances for the relevant year:

Related party Total as of 31 December
Parent company

(Lafarge) 2016 2015
JD JD JD

Consolidated statement of financial position items:
Accounts receivable 55,655 55,655 53,279
Accounts payable

11,828,394 11,828,394 9,040,841

Total for the year ended 31 December

Consolidated statement of profit or loss items:
Expenses 2,395,760 2,395,760 2,050,778

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group is as follows:

2016 2015
JD JD
Salaries and bonus 1,321,553 1,678,632
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(26) Material Partly-Owned Subsidiaries

The following represents financial information for the subsidiaries in which the non-controlling interests is significant:

Non-controlling interest
2016 2015

Company name Country of origin Operating activites

Producing and trading in ready mix
Arabian Concrete Supply Company Jordan & cementg v 49% 49%

The following represent summarized financial information for the subsidiary. Information was prepared before eliminating
transactions with related parties.

L .. 2016 2015
Significant accumulated non-controlling interests I I
Arabian Concrete Supply Company 7,764,999 8,147,610

Significant profits attributable to non-controlling interest

Arabian Concrete Supply Company 2,539,389 2,820,915

A — Summarized statement of financial position:

2016 2015
Arabian Concrete Supply Company
JD JD

Current assets 25,383,633 23,662,873
Non-current assets 7,674,605 8,339,673
Current liabilities (17,248,036) (15,374,771)
Total equity 15,810,202 16,627,775
Non-Controlling interests share from equity 7,746,999 8,147,610

B — Summarized statement of profit and loss:

2016 2015
Arabian Concrete Supply Company
JD JD

Sales 45,091,403 46,944,205
Cost of sales (36,907,521) (37,736,849)
Gross profit 8,183,882 9,207,356
Selling and marketing expenses (472,400) (444.,727)
Administrative expenses (1,488,716) (1,619,940)
Operating profit 6,222,766 7,142,689
Lawsuits expenses (16,000) -
Finance costs (186,684) (37,436)
Other income 472,759 79,224
Profit before tax for the year 6,492,841 7,184,477
Income tax expenses (1,310,414) (1,427,508)
Profit for the year 5,182,427 5,756,969
Other comprehensive income items - -
Total comprehensive income 5,182,427 5,756,969

Non-controlling interests share of other

s 2,539,389 2,820,915
comprehensive income - -
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2016 2015
Arabian Concrete Supply Company
JD JD
Cash flows
Operating activities 1,198,828 8,003,641
Investing activities 387,342 (101,969)
Financing activities (2,844,183) (5,035,542)
Ne:qﬁ\e;:::::) increase in cash and cash (1.258.013) 2 866.130

(27) Risk Management

Interest Rate Risk -
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest bearing assets and liabilities such as bank deposits, bank overdrafts,
and term loans.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of profit or loss to reasonably possible changes in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the consolidated statement of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the Group’s
profit for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December.

Increase /decreasein basis points Effect on loss
2016 JD
JD +75 188,965
JD -75 (188,965)
Increase /decreasein basis points Effect on profit
2015 JD
JD +75 (139,079)
JD -75 139,079

Equity price risk
The Group’s listed equity securities amounted to JD 38,290 as of 31 December 2016 (2015: JD 53,319). A decrease or increase
on the Amman exchange market index would not have a material impact on the profit or equity of the Group.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or a customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks, and other financial instruments.

The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to banks by only dealing with reputable banks and with respect to cement
business customers (local and foreign) by setting credit limits for majority of customers and monitoring outstanding receivables,
and with respect to ready mix (concrete) business customers by setting credit limits for individual customers and monitoring
outstanding receivables. The Group sells its products to a large number of cement and ready mix (concrete) customers. Largest
customer accounts for 11% of outstanding accounts receivable as at 31 December 2016 (2015:11%).

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not meet its obligations under its financial liabilities based on contractual maturity
dates. The Group monitors its liquidity by ensuring availability of funds to meet its obligations at their maturity dates.
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The table below summarises the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities as of 31 December for the years 2016
and 2015 based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

Less than
3 months

JD JD JD

3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years

Year ended 31 December 2016

Loans - 1,846,250 9,274,315 11,120,565
Due to banks 10,008,585 5,403,343 = 15,411,928
Accounts payable 28,405,438 11,759,427 216,830 40,381,695
Other current liabilities 171,183 63,314 5,659,830 5,894,327
Total 38,585,206 19,072,334 15,150,975 72,808,515

Less than
3 months

JD JD JD

3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years

Year ended 31 December 2015

Due to banks 12,214,155 6,689,572 = 18,903,727
Accounts payable 33,968,844 13,874,598 421,938 48,265,380
Other current liabilities 504,672 186,659 5,820,308 6,511,639
Total 46,687,671 20,750,829 6,242,246 73,680,746

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group’s transactions in U.S. Dollar do not give rise to foreign currency risk since the Jordanian Dinar is fixed against the
U.S. Dollar (USD 1.41 for each one JD).

The table below indicates the Group’s foreign currency exposure at 31 December, as a result of its monetary assets, liabilities
and forward exchange contracts. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the JD currency rate
against the Euro, occurring evenly throughout the year with all other variables held constant, on the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Increase/ decrease in foreign currency

Effect on loss

rate to the JD
% JD
Euro +10 10,982
Euro -10 (10,982)

Increase/ decrease in foreign currency Effect on profit

rate to the JD
% JD
Euro +10 (18,327)
Euro -10 18,327

(28) Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support
its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business conditions. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Capital comprises paid in capital, treasury stocks, reserves and accumulated losses, and is measured at JD 73,367,047 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: JD 81,587,004).
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(29) Fair Values

Financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group uses the following methods and alternatives of valuating and presenting the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

2016 - Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 188,087 - - 188,087

2015 - Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 203,116 - - 203,116

(30) Standards And Interpretation Issued But Not Yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

During July 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with all the three phases. IFRS 9 sets out the requirements
for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. IFRS 9
replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The Group has implemented the first phase of IFRS
9 as issued during 2009. The date of initial implementation of the first phase of IFRS 9 was 1 January 2011. The new version
of IFRS 9 will be implemented at the mandatory date on 1 January 2018, which will have an impact on the recognition and
measurement of financial assets.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from contracts with customers. It applies to all entities that
enter into contracts to provide goods or services to their customers, unless the contracts are in the scope of other IFRSs, such as
IAS 17 Leases. IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes,
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers; and SIC-31 Revenue—
Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, and early adoption is permitted.

IFRS 16 Leases
During January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 “Leases” which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases.

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset

representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted.
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IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative — Amendments to IAS 7

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows are part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative and require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application of the amendment, entities are not required
to provide comparative information for preceding periods. The amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017, with early application permitted. The application of amendments will result in adding limited amount of
disclosure information.

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — Amendments to IFRS 2

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.

Entities may apply the amendments prospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early application permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

In September 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 4 to address issues arising from the different effective dates of IFRS
9 and the upcoming new insurance contracts standard (IFRS 17). The amendments introduce two alternative options for entities
issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS 4, a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS 9 to annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2021 at latest and an overlay approach that allows an entity applying IFRS 9 to reclassify between profit or loss
and other comprehensive income an amount that results in the profit or loss at the end of the reporting period for the designated
financial assets being the same as if an entity had applied IAS 39 to these designated financial assets.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development into, or
out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early
application of the amendments is permitted and must be disclosed.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration,
the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective or prospective basis. The
new interpretation will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application of interpretation is
permitted and must be disclosed.

(31) Comparative Figures

Some of 2015 balances were reclassified to correspond with those of 2016 presentation. The reclassification has no effect on
the profit and equity of the year 2015.
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